/'{__“F_ (;\\‘
gob 157>

ATED OCTORE>
AGENDA

1-28 INFRASTRUCTURE MEETING
January 28, 2021 at 10:00 AM

Call to Order

Approval of Minutes

1. Approve Draft Minutes from 1-14-21

Old Business
2. CIP
3. Make TS Chu a Public Street

»

Old Marine Science Center
5. Southend Bathrooms
6. Master Water Meters
7. Current Projects Update
New Business

City Manager Comments

Adjournment



City of Tybee Island
Infrastructure Committee
Draft Minutes - January 14, 2021

In Attendance: Shawn Gillen, Alice Jonsson, George Shaw,
Monty Parks, Walter Hattrich, Barry Brown, Danny Carpenter,
Pete Gulbronson.

Call to Order: Shawn Gillen called the meeting to order at 10:02
AM.

1. Draft Minutes from 12-10 — George Shaw made the
motion to approve. Peter Gulbronson seconded. Motion
approved.

2. SE Bathroom — Peter Gulbronson went over plans for the
bathrooms. (The plans were shown on the screens in the
courtroom.) Can’t be flush to the ground. The posts will be
counted as the ‘impact area’. The buildings can be lowered
a small amount that is, as of yet, to be determined. Shawn
Gillen will meet with the neighbors next week. The big
question is where the dune line is. If the DNR doesn’t
approve any of it, we would need to find a new location.
Shawn Gillen — the costs should be roughly the same.

3. Old Marine Science Center — City Manager Gillen will be
taking Barry Brown and Monty Parks on a tour of the Old
Marine Science Center on 1-14-21. Todd Smith is assessing
our electronic needs. We are shooting for having the
building functioning for us before 100 days from now,



roughly, which is the start of the season. The group
discussed myriad aspects of the upgrading. Shawn Gillen
would like to use Greenline Architecture Firm because
they are familiar with the area and have successfully
worked with us.

. Capital Improvement Plan: Shawn Gillen would like to
create a five-year- CIP Plan. Then every January we can go
over it.

. Make TS Chu a Public Street: Shawn Gillen — Some
residents spoke with Shawn Gillen. He instructed the
residents how to communicate their wishes to the City.
Shawn Gillen - The water and sewer costs are not
additional costs to us. Those would be in the CIP
regardless. Shawn Gillen asked Peter Gulbronson what the
added cost would be for storm water and paving. Peter
Gulbronson - roughly $125,000.00 per road. Izlar — Shawn
Gillen asked Peter Gulbronson —right now we are patching
it. Peter Gulbronson has a break-out of the costs he will
provide the committee this week. Barry Brown would like
to do all three streets at once. Barry Brown asked Peter
Gulbronson to look into what a small paver would cost and
will bring it back to the committee by Feb.

Peter Gulbronson would like to check out what’s under the
roads before we pave them in order to be practical. While
we are tearing it up let’s see what might need to be fixed.



Barry Brown agrees. Shawn Gillen and Barry Brown
discussed myriad aspects of costs and how to pay for any
work done- financing, for example. Shawn Gillen made
clear that the water and sewer portion of the work done
on the street would come from the Water and Sewer
Fund, not from the General Fund. We will be taking on
some of the costs anyway. Shawn Gillen will update Barry
Brown after discussions with the TS Chu residents. Barry
Brown wants the residents to all be in agreement before
the city begins the work.

. Current Projects Update: Shawn Gillen would like to begin
the budget process in the Infrastructure Committee.
Shawn Gillen would like to dive into a five-year CIP Plan
that covers the things that the Infrastructure Committee
typically covers: water and sewer projects, street paving,
(let’s layout the streets we are going to pave in the next
five years, for example). And then every year in January we
will update it and we can knock things off the list. We need
to put money into the buildings every year that are listed
in the Building Assessment, and things like the Old Marine
Science Center and the Marsh Hen Trail. Battery Park —
Shawn Gillen — we are working with the Tybee MLK group
to restart an upgrade to that park, per the city’s resolution
for racial equity create some type of permanent display
about the Lazaretto and the history behind that. We can
work with whomever owns the property, if it’s the Federal
Gov.



Tree trimming: Shawn Gillen - that’s part of the
Operational Budget, for example, we need to make sure we are
getting enough money in there for projects like this.

Alice Jonsson will bring the printed Building Assessment
Spreadsheet and make sure it’s in the packet. Peter Gulbronson
will bring a printed Draft CIP and the water and sewer costs -
and will send an electronic version to the committee and for
the packet. Peter Gulbronson should include the costs for DPW
equipment in this one. Cover both projects and capital.

Stan Bearden needs to prepare a map and list of all of the
urgent the sanitary and sewer line needs to bring for the next
Infrastructure meeting. (And waterlines.)

The group wants another Infrastructure on January 28%", 2021.

Marsh Hen Trail — Peter Gulbronson needs the permit extended
from DNR — no timeline yet. Hopefully they can get it into the
April or May meeting. He will report back to the committee at
the next meeting or at the February meeting.

Peter Gulbronson - Soil analysis done on the fields — they said

by May we could possibly have grass with some work — need to
add lime and a preemergent get some organic material in there
and would need to add topsoil. There is a plan for it to be done.

Barry Brown — When can we put a fence all the way around the
pool? (In Jaycee Park.) Peter Gulbronson — that would be a DNR
question. Peter Gulbronson will have an answer by February
2021 about the fence.



Peter Gulbronson — | brought a map with the locations of the
tide-flexes on the outfalls, as requested. Map has all locations
and sizes. We have two more to install this year.

Crossovers — Peter Gulbronson — The decking is raised at 8" St.
and they are working on the railings. Next is to extend East
Gate and North Beach Center — raise them and make sure they
reach the sand. Working on the ADA crossovers first.

Barry Brown asked about the progress with Mr. Davis’ situation.
Shawn Gillen - We'll talk to the DNR about other options. We
will bring to Council two options that have a chance of being
approved, on January 28%", 2021. The permit would be good for
five years and we could possible get the permit in the fall of
2021.

Barry Brown motion to adjourn. Pete Gulbronson seconded.
Meeting adjourned at 11:05.

Jan. 28" will be the next meeting. Plan for 90 min 120 min.



Roofing Exterior Electrical Mechanical Plumbing Structural

Remove and replace damaged shingles as needed Destructive openings should be made to confirm  Exterior electrical panels are The GSHP units are approximately Water closets, urinal, and
throughout the roof area. Ensure shingle type matches the wall design. If the wall is multiwythe without a rusting and need to be 10 years old, and appear to be in  lavatories all appeared in
existing shingles and are installed with the cavity, the lack of weeps is a minimal result. If the replaced. Enclosure integrity is working working condition. Additional
properfastening and lapping patterns as called for in wall is a cavity type and moisture is being observed being compromised. order. GSHP units have a life fixtures may be required if any
industry standard applications. near the interior floor elevation, the exterior expectancy of 20 to 25 years if future renovations are

masonry should be removed at the floor elevation, properly performed.

a through wall flashing installed against the maintained. One issue to be

substrate wall and the exterior masonry reinstalled aware of with GSHP systems in

with the proper weep spacing. The flashing should this area is the

have a drip edge that extends to or just beyond possibility of warming up the well

the masonry wall face. field if the heat being rejected to

the well field is

not used later for heating. GSHP
City Hall systems work best in areas that

have a near

equal heating and cooling degree

days, since the heat that is

rejected during the

cooling season is used to heat the

building during the heating

season. If a well

field heats up, the available

capacity of the system reduces for

the cooling

system.

If this should occur a hybrid
system, utilizing a cooling tower

during the

Apply roofing cement to all exposed fasteners Corroded lintels should be removed, inspected for Exterior receptacles are not hottest cooling months, may be  Electric water heaters appear to
throughout the roof area. Ensure any previously metal loss and sanded/primed/painted or replaced type WR (Weather Resistant)  required to provide adequate be in working condition. If new
installed cement or sealant remnants are removed with new. The exterior masonry should be with heavy duty while inuse  cooling. fixtures are
before new removed just above the lintel elevation and a covers. installed with lower water flows,
application. through wall flashing installed water heaters may not perform

against the substrate wall and the exterior as well duetoa

masonry reinstalled with the proper weep spacing. minimum flow rate being

The flashing should have a drip edge that extends required to activate heater.

to or just beyond the masonry wall face.
Remove and replace roof penetration flashings. Replace Sprung metal clips are manufactured to install Generator needs permanent  If any renovations are to occur to  The piping for the building
with industry standard flashings that correlate with the plywood over a window that sits within a masonry platform with steps to access  the space, the rest rooms will be  should last the life of the
specific roof penetration. Ensure all previously existing  rough-in. Screws and nails should not be utilized ~ generator breakers and required to be brought up to building.
flashing remnants are removed prior to the installation  for storm controls with without a ladder. current code standards and have
of the new flashing components. protection. a mechanical exhaust system.

The exhaust system can be used
with the energy recovery wheel.



Staining should cease with proper window frame
sealing and fastener penetration repairs.

The masonry that is cracking or dislodged should
be removed and replaced. Proper lintels and
flashing should prevent any further rust jacking.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the substrate being sealed
at all open voids. Ensure any previously installed
sealant remnants are removed before new
application.

Route any drain lines that may keep masonry
damp to an area where moisture is properly
dispersed onto the ground.

Generator needs exterior
mounted emergency stop
switch.

There were no fire alarm
visuals noted in public
bathrooms. These should be
added.

No fire alarm pull stations were
noted at exterior exits. These
should be added.

Cracked fixture lens and
buckled fixture lens were
noted. These should be
repaired. Surface mounted
warp lens on fixtures in some
toilets were falling off. These
should be repaired.

Fluorescent lighting is old
technology and is being phased
out. Replacement

parts will become difficult to
find. Recommend replacing
with LED technology.

Replace all exterior mounted
receptacles with ground fault
type WR with heavy duty while
in use covers.

A Direct Digital Control (DDC)
should be evaluated for this
location. This will give
maintenance crews the ability to
remotely monitor the various
systems in the

building, as well as improving
energy use for the building.



The Old School Building

Remove and replace all sealant and roof cement
applications in the roof area with an industry standard
sealant specific to the substrate on which it is being
applied (i.e. pedestrian cover to school abutment
flashing, roof penetrations, etc.). Ensure all previously
existing cement and sealant remnants are removed
prior to the installation of the new components.

Remove and replace damaged or corroded HVAC rain
caps. Ensure replacement HVAC rain caps and their
fastening methods are industry standard and meet code
requirements for the location.

Install a compatible industry standard fabric reinforced
liquid PMMA membrane flashing over the perimeter
edge metal. Ensure positive lap and proper drainage.

Remove and replace prior repair areas that are
deteriorating or holding moisture.

Shroud the PTAC units in a hooded aluminum or
stainless steel sheath with a rain hood lid. Install
with a 3/8” perimeter void where closed cell
backer rod and sealant can be installed to form a
proper joint. If lumber is to remain the void

filler around the PTAC, it should be replaced with
primed and painted lumber (both sides) and
installed with proper perimeter terminations and
sealants that prevent the lumber from absorbing
moisture.

Panelboard cover missing on
the 200 amp main breaker
panel. Repair.

Panel clearances
compromised. Items stores in
front of panel. Provide code
required clearances of 3.”

Remove the vinyl siding at all termination and
abutment points. Install proper termination
channels that will catch water and send it to a
weep channel at the sidings bottom. If a
waterproof underlayment is not being utilized
beneath the siding, remove all siding, properly
apply a waterproofing sheet membrane and
properly reinstall the siding with its new
termination components.

Corroded lintels should be removed, inspected for There was no panel circuit
metal loss and sanded/primed/painted or replaced directory indicating equipment
with new. The exterior masonry should be served. Provide directory.
removed just above the lintel elevation and a

through wall flashing installed against the

substrate wall and the exterior masonry reinstalled

with the proper weep spacing. The flashing should

have a drip edge that extends to or just beyond

the masonry wall face.

The masonry that is cracking or dislodged should ~ Emergency lights were not
be removed and replaced. Sealant joint installation working in spin room when
should be utilized at the masonry to soffit test button was pushed.
abutment to cushion the abutment of the two rigid Repair.

surfaces and prevent crushing/cracking.

Re-install wall hung urinals.
Ensure at least one urinal is

The existing PTAC units are in
poor condition. PTAC units
generally last for 10 to installed to comply with

15 years if maintained. The ADA requirements, 16 inches
building is a good candidate to be from floor to lip.

renovated with a

variable refrigerant system

(VRF/V) VRF/V systems are

energy efficient systems

that utilize multiple DX air

handlers spread throughout a

building and tie back to

larger outdoor units. They are

well suited to existing buildings

where space

constraints do not allow

traditional units to be installed.

Make stall to ADA water closet
ADA compliant. Stall width and
depth should be a minimum of
60 inches wide by 59 inches
deep.

Wall hung unit appears to be a
recent addition and is in good
condition.

Verify code required outside airis Plumbing piping should last the
being provided to the units. If not, life of the building.
provide the

minimum code required outside

air the units. This will affect the

cooling and

heating load, and would require

modifications to allow this. The

total amount of outside air may

be reduced with systems that can

clean the air as indicated in

ASHRAE 62 (i.e. Bi-Polar lonization

with needle point technology),

and the outside air load to the

units may be reduced with an

energy recovery wheel.

If any renovations are to occur to
the space, the rest rooms will be
required to be

brought up to current code
standards and have a mechanical
exhaust system.

The exhaust system can be used
with the energy recovery wheel.



The Cafeteria Building

Remove any corroded metal components from the wall
to roof abutment to prevent further rust jacking and
flashing movement.

Install internal drainage system on the roof to prevent
ponding or build crickets to push the water to the roofs
perimeter. Ensure new drainage system is adequate
for the specific roof square footage and existing roof
system.

Remove and replace roof penetration sealant with an
industry standard sealant specific to the substrate and
membrane which it is being applied. Ensure all
previously existing sealant remnants are removed prior
to the installation of the new sealants and the substrate
is primed if applicable.

The cementitious/masonry components should be
scraped of loose elastomeric

coating, primed (if recommended by the new
coating manufacturer) and

recoated. The moisture intrusion must be stopped
before recoating or the new

coating will blister from trapped moisture.

Unseal any weep point at the bottom of any wall
covering system and provide a

flashing that diverts the water from the wall
covering to the ground.

Destructive openings should be made to confirm
the wall design. If the wall is multiwythe without a
cavity the lack of weeps is a minimal result. If the
wall is a cavity type and moisture is being observed
near the interior floor elevation, the

exterior masonry should be removed at the floor
elevation, a through wall flashing installed against
the substrate wall and the exterior masonry
reinstalled with the proper weep spacing. The
flashing should have a drip edge that extends to or
just beyond the masonry wall face.

To repair the improper flashing, the entry cover
roof and the exterior masonry just above the roof /
wall intersection should be removed. Install
through wall flashing against the substrate wall
with a drip edge that extends beyond the masonry
wall face. Reinstall the existing masonry and install
a new entry cover roof making sure that the new
flashing drip edge covers the shingles that abut the
wall.

Fire alarm visuals were not
noted in toilets or some
exercise rooms. These
should be added.

Fluorescent lighting is old
technology and is being phased
out. Replacement

parts will become difficult to
find. Recommend replacing
with LED technology.

Emergency lights were not
working in cafeteria and
kitchen areas when test
buttons were pushed. Repair.

No exterior emergency lights
at exterior exits were installed.
Provide.

A Direct Digital Control (DDC)
should be evaluated for this
location. This will give
maintenance crews the ability to
remotely monitor the various
systems in the

building, as well as improving
energy use for the building.

Wall hung units appear to be in
good working condition, and
appear to be fairly

new.

If units supply greater than 2,000
CFM of design supply air, install a
duct smoke

detector in duct. Upon activation
of duct smoke detector, the unit
shall be deenergized

and an alarm shall sound.

Remove trash from floor drain in
kitchen area.

Make fixtures comply with ADA
requirements.



Repair the detached flashing membrane on the West
elevation at the roofs’ perimeter. Properly adhere the
membrane to the edge metal using a waterproof
industry standard bonding adhesive or carry the
membrane over the edge and attach with a termination
bar and sealant. Ensure that the substrate is primed if
applicable.

Remove and replace prior repair areas that are
deteriorating or holding moisture.

Corroded lintels should be removed, inspected for
metal loss and sanded/primed/painted or replaced
with new. The exterior masonry should be

removed just above the lintel elevation and a
through wall flashing installed against the
substrate wall and the exterior masonry reinstalled
with the proper weep spacing. The flashing should
have a drip edge that extends to or just beyond
the masonry wall face.

At the same time that the corroded lintels are
being replaces, remove and replace the corroded
door frame.

All spalling or degraded concrete should be
removed from the soffits. If structural steel is
exposed, check for metal loss, prepare and coat
the steel with a rust inhibitor and primer. Install
the proper concrete patch material for overhead
use.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the substrate being sealed
to at all open voids. Ensure any previously installed
sealant remnants are removed before new
application.

No ground fault type WR
receptacles were installed near
wall hung HVAC units

for maintenance purposes.
Install within 25’ of units.

One MC cable connection to
exit sign in cafeteria was not
secured to wall. Secure.

Label exterior service
disconnect as to what it serves.

Label exterior panel breakers
as to what they serve.

Install fire alarm pull stations
and audible/visual devices.

Fluorescent lighting is old
technology and is being phased
out. Replacement

parts will become difficult to
find. Recommend replacing
with LED technology.

Verify code required outside air is Additional fixtures are required
being provided to the units. If not, to comply with International
provide the Plumbing Code to

minimum code required outside  type of space the building is
air the units. This will affect the  being used for.

cooling and

heating load, and would require

modifications to allow this. The

total amount of

outside air may be reduced with

systems that can clean the air as

indicated in

ASHRAE 62 (i.e. Bi-Polar lonization

with needle point technology),

and the

outside air load to the units may

be reduced with an energy

recovery wheel.

Ensure water heater is set to
140F in accordance with the
International Plumbing
Code and Health Code.

If any renovations are to occur to
the space, the rest rooms will be
required to be

brought up to current code
standards and have a mechanical
exhaust system.

The exhaust system can be used
with the energy recovery wheel.

Plumbing piping should last the
life of the building.

A Direct Digital Control (DDC)
should be evaluated for this
location. This will give
maintenance crews the ability to
remotely monitor the various
systems in the

building, as well as improving
energy use for the building.



YMCA FITNESS BUILDING

Remove and replace the shingle roof to pedestrian cover Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are

abutment flashing and sealant with stainless steel or
aluminum regletted flashing set in an industry

standard sealant specific to the substrate on which it is
being applied. Ensure that all previously existing sealant
and flashing remnants are removed prior to the
installation of the new components and the substrate is
primed if applicable. The flashing over the new entry
roof area should have a drip edge that extends

beyond the masonry wall face to cover the pedestrian
abutment. Clean out the joint area and install closed cell
backer rod to ensure three-point adhesion and

proper joint movement.

Make a note to inspect the roof deck thoroughly during
future repairs or replacement. If the deck can be
observed from the interior, it is recommended

that this be performed to locate any decking that may
be improperly braced or in a state of deterioration.

designed to adhere to the substrate being sealed
to at all open voids. Ensure any previously installed exposed. Install

Panel board covers were not
installed. Panel interiors were

Install code required outside air
duct to existing air handler that
does not have

Pipe material should last the life
of the building.

sealant remnants are removed before new
application.

The cementitious/masonry components should be
scraped of loose elastomeric coating, primed (if
recommended by the new coating manufacturer)
and recoated. The moisture intrusion must be
stopped before recoating or the new coating will
blister from trapped moisture.

covers.

Clearances in front of panels
were not maintained panels
were inaccessible. Provide 3’
clearances

An exterior cable box door was
open exposing cabling and
connections to the elements.
Secure cover.

MC cable was not properly
secured leaving top of panels.
Secure per code.

There were no type WR ground
fault receptacles with heavy
duty while in use

covers installed near exterior
mechanical equipment. Install
within 25’ of equipment.

outside air. The total amount of
outside air may be reduced with
systems that can clean the air as
indicated in ASHRAE 62 (i.e. Bi-
Polar lonization with needle point
technology), and the outside air
load to the units may be reduced
with anenergy recovery wheel.

Install fixtures which comply
with ADA height requirements.

Outdoor unit platform was
constructed in a way which
impedes access to outdoor
units. Design of platform should
be reconsidered.

Insulate condensate drain lines.

Revaluate equipment size for
weight room to determine if unit
is sized correctly. If high humidity
is an issue, a dehumidification
system mounted to the unit
should be considered to eliminate
the requirement to drain the
system manually. An ERV may
also be considered to help
dehumidify the air.

If any renovations are to occur to
the space, the rest rooms will be
required to be brought up to
current code standards and have
a mechanical exhaust system.
The exhaust system can be used
with the energy recovery wheel.



YMCA Gymnasium

Remove and replace the single ply membrane roof. The
roof will more than likely need to be removed to the
deck level due to ongoing leaks that could have
damaged the insulation layers. The new roof should be
installed in accordance with the manufacturers’
specifications with proper flashings at its perimeter and
at its abutment to through-roof components.

Destructive openings should be made to confirm
the wall design. If the wall is multiwythe without a
cavity the lack of weeps is a minimal result. If the
wallis a cavity type (observed on the West face
near the loading dock as a cavity) and

moisture is being observed near the interior floor
elevation, the exterior masonry should be
removed at the floor elevation, a through wall
flashing installed against the substrate wall and
the exterior masonry reinstalled with the proper
weep spacing. Before flashing installation, the
waterproofing of the substrate wall should be
verified. The vapor barrier was observed as brittle
and torn while onsite. Masonry removal would be
needed to remove, replace or install

substrate waterproofing. The flashing should have
a drip edge that extends to or just beyond the
masonry wall face.

No fire alarm visual devices A Direct Digital Control (DDC)

were noted in corridors. Install should be evaluated for this

per code in public areas. location. This will give
maintenance crews the ability to
remotely monitor the various
systems in the building, as well as
improving energy use for the
building.

There were no emergency
lights in toilets.

There were no emergency
lights at exterior exits. Install at
exits.

One emergency light was not
working in fitness room.
Correct.

There was yellow nonmetallic
sheathed cabling leaving top of
panel and entering

into ceiling cavity above
dropped acoustical tile ceiling
exposed. This is not
permissible per NEC
334.12.A(2). Correct.

Support MC cabling leaving top
of panel near top of panel
between ceiling and panel
cabinet per code.

Recess door frames were not
latched to fixture housing in
some areas. Correct.

Package rooftop units have a life
span of approximately 15 to 20
years. Given the area these units
are located, and the fact that the
condensing coils are not coated,
this life span will be reduced.
Future units should be specified
with epoxy coated coils on the
condenser and evaporator to
prevent corrosion.

Fix water leak at water closet in
women’s restroom/locker area.



Install industry standard thru-wall termination flashings

at the adjoining fagade on the East/West exterior
parapet walls and over the duct wall entry of the low
roof. This will require cutting into the exterior finish
system and properly applying the flashing to the
substrate wall. Ensure the newly installed flashing

components drip edge laps positively over the roofing

membrane and the new flashing components are
properly sealed at the exterior finish system.

Remove and replace HVAC pans with new industry
standard pans. Ensure the pans meet code
requirements for the location and all fasteners that
penetrate the

roof curb are properly sealed with an industry standard

sealant application.

Metal coping caps should be removed and replaced

where they do not form a swell and hold moisture. The

new roofing membrane should run up and over the
parapet wall before new coping installation. The caps
should have their lap joints sealed and a saddle cover
coping piece should then be sealed atop the cap to
ensure no leaks.

The pitch pans should be capped off with new flexible
pitch pan pourable sealer.

The new roof membrane should be protected from any
impact damage of downspout water pressure or choked

support components.

In attempt to seal off the open air void between the

terminating edge of the standing seam metal panel and

the terminating edge of the gable, remove and
replace the gable cap closure on the peak of the roof.
Install butyl tape the length of the gable between the

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the substrate being sealed
to at all open voids. Ensure any previously installed
sealant remnants are removed before new
application.

The masonry mortar that is cracking or dislodged

Fixture lens were dirty in some
areas. Clean

One exterior wall pack fixture

should be removed and replaced at the masonry to door/lens cover was open

finish system abutment(s).

A joint should be allowed between two substrate
components that have differential movement
capacities. This is typically allowed by an expansion
joint. No joint was observed between the exterior
finish wall system and the masonry.

This had caused the two to squeeze and pull
against one another causing cracks and mortar
loss.

Adjust grading and landscaping so the soil sloping
is proper and removes water
and soil sediment from the building components.

Repair leaking gutter joints and collector heads
with submersible sealant or
replacement.

The horizontal termination row locks should be
removed and reinstalled at an

angle to shed water toward the exterior of the
building to ensure no moisture

holds atop the row locks and soaks into the wall

new metal termination cap and the standing seam metal cavity.

roof panel. Ensure that the butyl tape fully encloses the

void between the standing seam metal panel and the
termination metal cap.

exposing fixture lamp/lamp
socket to exterior elements.
Fix.

No emergency lights were
noted in toilets.

A few exit signs were loose and
not secured to outlet boxes.
Correct.

Fluorescent lighting is old
technology and is being phased
out. Replacement

parts will become difficult to
find. Recommend replacing
with LED technology.

Install guard rails around edge of ~ Fixtures should last the lifetime
roof where exhaust fan is of the building.

installed to comply

with code requirements.

Relocate rain water collection
cistern in order to provide
access to crawl space.

Replace air devices with
aluminum type air devices to
prevent rusting.

Provide electric wall heater in fire
riser to prevent freezing of fire
suppression

pipes.

Pipes should last the lifetime of
the building

A Direct Digital Control (DDC)
should be evaluated for this
location. This will give
maintenance crews the ability to
remotely monitor the various
systems in the building, as well as
improving energy use for the
building.



Fire Department Office Building

Remove and replace existing ridge cap throughout the

Remove and replace metal soffit panels after leak

roof area with a new industry standard ridge cap. Ensure points above have been

the newly installed ridge cap is compatible

with the existing roof system. Ensure proper lapping,
flashing and closures are installed with the new ridge
cap.

Remove all topical applied repair areas. Install a fabric
reinforced liquid PMMA membrane flashing over joints
and repair areas. Prepare the metal panel as required by
the fabric reinforced liqguid PMMA membrane flashing
manufacturer.

Remove and replace moisture damaged fascia and
eyebrow roof trim lumber components. All lumber
should be painted on all sides before application.
Ensure new lumber is compatible with the existing
building components and meets all code requirements
for the location. Ensure new materials meet any
historical code requirements necessary.

Repair missing shingle and nail pop locations throughout The lumber components should be scraped of
loose paint and be recoated with a
high quality exterior paint. Moisture intrusion

the roof area. Ensure shingle type matches existing
shingles and are installed to industry standards
and wind loads.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the substrate being sealed to at
all open voids. Ensure any previously installed

sealant remnants are removed before new application.

A stainless steel, aluminum, or new material flashing
hood should be installed beneath the roof watershed
membrane and cover the roof to gable void. The
hood should meet any necessary historical code
requirements.

mitigated.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the substrate being sealed

Recommend installing self-
contained emergency and exit

to at all open voids and sealant replacement areas. lights.

Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants

are removed before new
application.

must be stopped before recoating

or the new coating will not adhere or delaminate

from trapped moisture.

Water should be diverted to the sides of the

doorway by installing a low curb or hump onto the
concrete drive into the garage. A threshold gasket
could also be added to the bottom of the operable

garage door to form a seal when it

compresses to the concrete when the door if fully

closed.

Fixture lens were dirty. Clean
fixture lens.

Install maintenance
receptacles near exterior
mechanical equipment. Type
WR

Recommend installing self-
contained smoke detectors
with audibles in sleeping
quarters.

Units that served occupied space
will need to have the minimum
code required outside air added.
This will affect the cooling and
heating load, and would require
modifications to allow this. The
total amount of outside air may
be reduced with systems that can
clean the air as indicated in
ASHRAE 62 (i.e. Bi-Polar
lonization with needle point
technology), and the outside air
load to the units may

be reduced with an energy
recovery wheel.

Ventilate the oxygen storage area
as required by code.

Ventilate locker rooms to meet
code requirements.

Re-secure pipe support on
exterior sanitary line to ensure
proper drainage of

system.



Replace antiquated plug fuse
panel in bathroom.

Fluorescent lighting is old
technology and is being phased
out. Replacement

parts will become difficult to
find. Recommend replacing
with LED technology.







Remove and replace roof penetration sealant/cement  Replace the top glass pane of the front central 2nd Exterior receptacles installed  Properly trap condensate drain Plumbing piping should last the
with an industry standard sealant/cement specific to the level window. Ensure that the glass fully fitsinto  were not type WR. Replace. lines life of the building
substrate on which it is being applied. Ensure all the window’s framing unlike the current assembly.
previously existing flashing remnants are removed prior Ensure new materials meet any historical code
to the installation of the new flashing components and  requirements necessary. To perform this, the
the substrate is primed if applicable. glazing putty will need to be removed and replaced
at the glass pane to
frame abutment. The glazing putty should be
inspected, removed and replaced where needed
on all other windows.

The Guard House
Remove debris from the external gutter system to Remove and replace any moisture damaged or Some of the exterior Verify requirement for Type | Plumbing fixtures are in good
ensure the free flow of water splitting lumber siding and trim components. receptacles did not have while hood over range. At the very least shape and should last 20 years
and ensure the proper expulsion of water from the roof Ensure new lumber is compatible with the existing in use covers installed. provide range hood with fire
area. Set a maintenance building components and meets all code Provide. suppression system.
schedule to continue to do this quarterly each year. requirements for the location. Paint the lumber

on both sides before installation. Ensure new
materials meet any historical code
requirements necessary.

Remove and replace any moisture damaged fascia Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are  Emergency lighting was not
lumber components. Ensure new lumber is compatible  designed to adhere to the substrate being sealed  working on the battery mode.
with the existing building components and meets all to at all open voids and sealant replacement areas. Correct all.

code requirements for the location. Paint the lumber on Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants

both sides before installation. Ensure new materials are removed before new

meet any historical code requirements necessary. application.



Prepare the tin and inspect the intensity of the corrosion There was no emergency
on the panels. Remove and replace any panels that have lighting located at exterior
corroded through or at the brink of doing so. Coat all exits. Provide.

other areas with a liquid applied rust inhibitor and then

paint to match existing.

Overall the electrical system
was in very good condition.

Remove and replace the single ply membrane roofs. The Apply high quality low modulus sealants thatare  No maintenance receptacles  The units are relatively new and  Plumbing piping should last the

roofs will more than likely need to be removed to the designed to adhere to the are installed near HVAC units in should last 15 to 20 years if life of the building.
deck level due to ongoing leaks that could have substrate being sealed to at all open voids and attic. Provide. properly maintained.

damaged the insulation layers unless they are direct sealant replacement areas.

applied. The new roof should be installed in accordance Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants

with the manufacturers’ specifications with proper are removed before new

flashings at its perimeters. Remove and replace the application.

sealant at the shingle to membrane roof abutments
with an industry standard sealant specific to the
substrate on which it is being applied. Ensure all
previously existing flashing/sealant remnants are
removed prior to the installation of the new
flashing/sealant components and the substrate is
primed if applicable.

The Police Department

Repair the detached flashing membrane on the North  Repair any damaged fiber cement siding with Exterior receptacles are not Install Type | hood over the range Plumbing fixtures are relatively
portion of the building at the roof’s rear perimeter. cement siding patch product made of an acrylic type WR or installed with a in the break room. Refer to new and should last roughly 20
Properly adhere the membrane to the edge mortar compound for patching. Paint the siding to heavy duty while in use section 507 of the International  years.

metal/external gutter system using a waterproof match existing. cover. Correct. Mechanical Code for more

industry standard bonding adhesive. Ensure that the information. Provide any

substrate is primed if applicable. documentation that show

exception to this code
requirement.

Apply roofing cement to all exposed fasteners Prepare, prime and paint all metal doors and Noted dirty fixture lens Determine cause for organic
throughout the roof area including box vent fasteners.  frames to prevent corrosion. Utilize throughout. Clean throughout. growth/dust on air devices.
Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants are an exterior rust inhibitor and/or high quality Change filters at a regular interval
removed if applicable. exterior paint. on all air handlers and ERV units.
Consider the installation of additional ventilation in Looks like mildew may have Determine cause for leak around
various roof areas. Ensure the current ventilation accumulated on fixture lens in  ductless unit in Squad Room. Fix
system is adequate for this roof’s specific square investigation area. Cleanand  and repair unit as required.
footage. Attic and deck heat are the number one cause sanitize to get rid of mold.

of shingles becoming brittle prematurely.






Water and Sewer Building

Replace the existing weight cradle for the satellite
components with an elevated

weight cradle to ensure no moisture gets trapped or
held against the membrane

roofing. The new weight cradle should allow moisture to
pass beneath it.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the

substrate being sealed to at all open voids and
sealant replacement areas.

Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants
are removed before new

application.

Remove and replace any moisture damaged or
splitting lumber window trim

components. Ensure new lumber is compatible
with the existing building

components and meets all code requirements for
the location. Paint the lumber

on both sides before installation. Scrape, prep and
paint all lumber with a high

quality exterior paint

The remove and repoint the cracks in the mortar.
Seal the cracks in the masonry
with a high quality low modulus sealants.

The cementitious/masonry components should be
scraped of loose elastomeric

coating, primed (if recommended by the new
coating manufacturer) and

recoated. The moisture intrusion must be stopped
before recoating or the new

coating will blister from trapped moisture.

Due to 2 different voltages in
building, 208V & 480V, the
color-coding scheme

utilized should be posted on
MCC and panelboard.

Pump room fixture lens covers
were loose. Repair.

Different color fixture lamps
were utilized.

Fixture lens on 2nd floor office
were dirty. Clean all lens.

Disconnect switch serving
exterior A/C unit did not have
proper clearances to

access. Remove/relocate.

There was no maintenance
receptacle near outdoor A/C
unit. Furnish and install.

Fluorescent and HID lighting is
old technology and is being
replaced with LED
technology.

Units that serve occupied space  Fix leaking water closet.
will need to have the minimum
code required

outside air added. This will affect
the cooling and heating load, and
would require

modifications to allow this. The
total amount of outside air may
be reduced with

systems that can clean the air as
indicated in ASHRAE 62 (i.e. Bi-
Polar

lonization with needle point
technology).

Mechanically ventilate the
restroom.

Reinstall the wall heater in
restroom for freeze protection.

Fully support package unit on
platform.



Water and Sewer Lab

Remove debris and vegetation from the East side of the
external gutter system

on the South elevation to ensure the free flow of water
into the downspouts.

Replace the above mentioned gutter stalk if applicable
with a new compatible

industry standard gutter stalk.

Remove and replace the impact damaged metal panels
with a compatible,

weather resistant metal panel and ensure all code
requirements are met for the

location. Ensure all manufacturer specifications are
followed during the

installation process.

Install pipe vent boots on the pipe vent roof
penetrations. Ensure all code

requirements are met for the location. Ensure all
manufacturer specifications are

followed during the installation process.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the

substrate being sealed to at all open voids and
sealant replacement areas.

Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants
are removed before new

application.

New metal wall panels could be removed and
replaced but it appears that there

has been frame movement. Installing new wall
panels would only repair the

building aesthetically. A foundation study should
be performed to report on the

settlement of the foundation.

Plaque required identifying the
two services, 208V and 480V
one for panel and

one for MCC to indicate service
disconnect 1 of 2, etc.

The 208 volt service required a
main disconnect at panel.

Circuit directory required for
200 amp load center. Provide.

Units that serve occupied space
will need to have the minimum
code required

outside air added. This will affect
the cooling and heating load, and
would require

modifications to allow this. The
total amount of outside air may
be reduced with

systems that can clean the air as
indicated in ASHRAE 62 (i.e. Bi-
Polar

lonization with needle point
technology).

Disconnect switch required on
primary side of dry type
transformer. Install.

Provide additional supports for
type ENT raceway. Support 3’
on centers and

within 3’ of outlet boxes,
fittings, etc.

No maintenance receptacles
located near outdoor
condensing unit. Provide.

Ground fault receptacles not
installed at counter sink in lab.
Provide.

Ground fault receptacle at sink
in breakroom not working.
Correct.

Pipe material should last the life
of the building.

Install fixtures which comply
with ADA height requirements.

Install an eye wash station in the
storage area.

Verify need for acid dilution in
lab area.

The foundation settlement is a
concern for the future stability of
the building. A

foundation study should be
performed to determine the
cause of the settlement

of the foundations and to be
able to determine the best repair
procedures.

A geotechnical investigation
should also be performed to help
determine the

cause of the settling.



The Campground Office/Store

Remove debris from underneath the Front central
dormer where the shingled

roof ties into the dormer. Inspect for proper flashings at
the abutment behind the

debris and lumber shims.

Repair missing shingle locations throughout the roof
area. Ensure shingle type

matches existing shingles and are installed by current
industry and wind

standards.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the

substrate being sealed to at all open voids and
sealant replacement areas.

Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants
are removed before new

application.

Cover the larger voids with a vinyl siding patch.
Apply perimeter sealant between

the cover and the existing siding. The larger joints
in the siding should receive

closed cell backer rod and sealant.

Surface mounted fixture in
breakroom is missing lamps
and lens cover. Repair/replace.

Fixture lens in toilets need
cleaning.

Provide emergency lighting
and exit signs.

All exterior mounted

receptacles should be type WR,

ground fault with heavy
duty while in use cover.

Open splices and covers
missing on junction/outlet
boxes. Correct.

Fluorescent and HID lighting
systems is old technology.
Recommend upgrading

to LED technology.

Multiple service disconnects
exceeding code requirements.
Correct.

Inadequate clearances in front
of electrical equipment located
in electrical closet.

Provide minimum of 3’
clearance.

Units that serve occupied space
will need to have the minimum
code required

outside air added. This will affect
the cooling and heating load, and
would require

modifications to allow this. The
total amount of outside air may
be reduced with

systems that can clean the air as
indicated in ASHRAE 62 (i.e. Bi-
Polar

lonization with needle point
technology).

Re-connect new split system to
existing ductwork in camp store.
This will provide

better cooling and heating of the
space.

Plumbing piping should last the
life of the building

Plumbing fixtures are in good
shape and should last 20 years.



Remove the existing roofing cement around the
chimney and replace with an

industry standard metal counter flashing component.
Ensure that the counter

flashing component is sealed and all manufacturer
specification are followed

during the installation process.

Repair the roof deck area in the rear of the campground
office where a sump has

formed and is holding water. Ensure new decking is
compatible with the roof

system and meets all code requirements.

Racked shingles can result in wind damage due to the
lack of the shingle weight

atop adjacent shingles. This is more than likely the
reason debris was noted

beneath the exposed corner shingles. The only way to
fully correct racked

shingles is to remove and replace the shingles. A
maintenance program could

be implemented to keep debris cleaned from beneath
the shingles but this

obviously would do nothing more for wind protection.

Adjust grading and landscaping so the soil sloping  Inadequate supports for

is proper and removes water nonmetallic sheath cable.
and soil sediment from the building components. If Support 4 % feed on centers
this is not possible due to the and with 12” of cable entry to
surrounding build of the office building it is electrical enclosures.
recommended that the process of

drainage installation as observed on the back

porch area be carried to the

adjacent building faces that are seeing moisture

intrusion at the floor elevation.

Open electrical spaces in
electrical closet without

junction boxes. Enclose all with

junction boxes.

No maintenance receptacle in
vicinity of outdoor A/C unit.
Provide one.

Receptacle/outlet in electrical

closet without a device plate
cover. Furnish and
install.

Exterior receptacles are not of
type WR in while-in-use covers.

Correct all.

Vending machine receptacles
are not ground fault type.
Provide GFI protection.

Fixture lens are missing in
some areas. Correct.

Missing trim at some
downlights in storage room.
Provide trims.

Cracked lens on surface wrap
fixture in storage room. Fix.

Install water hammer arrestors
at each washer connection box
on both hot and
cold water lines.

Fix leaking water heater



Improper clearance of service
conductors passing over roof.
A minimum of 3’ required per
code 230.24 clearances.
Correct

North Beach Concession Stand Install butyl sealant at the standing seam voids along all  Apply high quality low modulus sealants thatare ~ Meter and exterior circuit Ensure supply air is filtered. Ensure water temperature is to
standing seam designed to adhere to the breaker are inaccessible. They 140F to comply with the
terminations on the high end of the roof. Ensure the substrate being sealed to at all open voids and are covered up with International Plumbing
sealant caps the panel fold sealant replacement areas. trash cans. Provide access and Code and Health Department
and is installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s  Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants ~ work clearances of 3’ per code. requirements.
specifications. are removed before new

application.
The horizontal termination between the Missing while in use covers on  Ensure fly fan is set to on position
differential wall panel types should be exterior receptacles. Replace. after work is completed in space.

removed and reinstalled at an angle to shed water
toward the exterior of the

building to ensure no moisture holds atop the
termination and soaks into the wall

cavity. Installing a cant piece of like material set in
a bed of sealant and sealed

across the top leg could also provide the same
protection yet be a maintenance

item with sealant removal and replacement cycles
in the future.

Exterior receptacles are not
type WR. Replace.



The Marine Rescue Squadron

Remove and replace the existing shingle roof system.

Install new industry

standard underlayment and shingles. Ensure the new

roof system is compatible

with the building and that all code requirements are

met. Ensure the new roof

system is installed in coordination with the

manufacturer’s specifications.
Replace decking in areas if applicable.

Ensure perimeter flashings and drip edge metals cover

the vertical fascia below

50 no moisture can potentially find a route into the attic

and wall.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are

designed to adhere to the

substrate being sealed to at all open siding voids

and sealant replacement areas.

Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants

are removed before new
application.

Prepare, prime and paint all metal doors, frames

and straps to prevent corrosion.

Utilize an exterior rust inhibitor and/or high quality

exterior paint.

Coat the deck to vinyl terminations with a lumber

treatment/waterproofer to
prevent lumber deterioration

One receptacle at sink counter
was not ground fault type.

Receptacle in mens restroom
was not ground fault type and
should be.

Dishwasher was not on ground
fault breaker and needs to be.

Exterior receptacles are not
type WR and are in need of
while-in-use covers.

Exterior porch downlights are
rusting. Replace.

An exterior receptacle above
utility meter underside of
second floor is not

grounding type or ground fault
type and does not have a
cover. Correct.

There is no maintenance
receptacle at outdoor A/C unit.
Provide.

The exterior well pump
disconnect/controller is rusting
and in bad condition.

Replace.

Provide the minimum code

Plumbing piping should last the

required outside air the units. This life of the building

will affect the

cooling and heating load, and
would require modifications to
allow this. The total

amount of outside air may be
reduced with systems that can
clean the air as

indicated in ASHRAE 62 (i.e. Bi-
Polar lonization with needle point
technology),

and the outside air load to the
units may be reduced with an
energy recovery

wheel.

Plumbing fixtures are in good
shape and should last 20 years.



NB Grill Restaurant

Remove all debris from the roof.

Relocate the shingled roof’s underlayment termination
over the top of the edge

metal to ensure that any moisture that intrudes past the
shingles is able to weep

out off the roof versus beneath the edge metal.

Remove and replace roofing cement at roof
penetrations with industry standard

cement specific to the substrate on which it is being
applied. Ensure all

previously existing cement remnants are removed prior
to the installation of the

new cement and the substrate is primed if applicable.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the

substrate being sealed to at all open siding voids and
sealant replacement areas.

Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants are
removed before new

application.

Remove and replace the cap sheet around the grease
vent. Remediate the vent

on the South portion of the roof so that grease overflow
does not make contact

with the bituminous roof material in this area. Install a
secondary sacrificial cap

sheet over the new roofing area to decrease roof
deterioration if the vent

overflows in the future.

Remove patch material in the central portion of the roof
and replace with a

bituminous roofing component that is compatible with
the existing roof system in

this area. Ensure coordination with the manufacturer
specifications during the

installation process.

Exterior receptacles are not
type WR with while in use
covers. Correct all.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the

substrate being sealed to at all open siding voids
and sealant replacement areas.

Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants
are removed before new

application.

Remove the T-1-11 siding at all termination and
through-wall abutment points.

Install proper termination channels and flashings
that will catch water and send

outboard of the exterior siding via a drip edge. If a
waterproof underlayment is

not being utilized beneath the siding, remove all
siding, properly apply a

waterproofing sheet membrane and properly
reinstall the siding with its new

termination components.

Fixtures in kitchen are dirty
with broken lens. Replace all
fixtures.

Remove and replace any moisture damaged fascia Exit signs in kitchen are dirty.

lumber components. Ensure Replace
new lumber is compatible with the existing

building components and meets all

code requirements for the location. Paint the

lumber on both sides before

installation. Ensure new materials meet any

historical code requirements

necessary.

Main breakers in exterior

panels need to be identified as

to “service disconnects
lof2and2of2.”

MC cable is improperly

supported. Support per NEC.

Branch circuit color coding

exterior panels is not consisted

from phase to phase.
Correct.

Ensure grease hoods and
associated ductwork are cleaned
at regular intervals.

Ensure water heater is set to
140F in accordance with
International Plumbing

Code and Health Department
requirements.



Tybee Arts Building

Make a note to inspect the roof deck thoroughly during
future repairs or

replacement. If the deck can be observed from the
interior, it is recommended

that this be performed to locate any decking that may
be improperly braced or in

a state of deterioration.

Remove and replace both the North and the South
roofs. Replace with new

industry standard roofing that is compatible with the
building components.

Ensure new roof meets code for the location and all
manufacturer specifications

are followed during the installation process. Ensure new
materials meet any

historical code requirements necessary. Install new
flashings at penetrations and

perimeters where they apply.

Remove and replace window glass pane to frame
glazing putty. The glazing

putty should be inspected, removed and replaced
where needed on all original

type windows.

Conductors in panels are not
grouped in workman like
manner. Correct.

Knockouts in panels are not
plugged. Provide inserts.

Grounds and neutrals
terminate on same bar.
Separate.

Panel cabinets do not appear
to be bonded or grounded.
Correct.

Conductors pass through
cabinet knockout without
protection or cable
connectors. Provide
protection.

There are no circuit directories
on panels indicating what
equipment is being

serviced by what breakers.
Provide directories

In general electrical system is
in fair condition.

Some of the exit signs were
not working and need to be
repaired. Correct.

If package unit supply air is
greater than 2,000 CFM of design
air, install a duct

smoke detector in duct. Upon
activation of duct smoke
detector, the unit shall be
de-energized and an alarm shall
sound.

Plumbing piping should last the
life of the building



Remove and replace wall abutment flashing between Remove and replace any moisture damaged or There was no emergency Provide the minimum code Plumbing fixtures are in good

the North and South roofs. splitting lumber siding and trim lighting at exterior exits. required outside air the units. This shape and should last 20 years.
Replace with new industry standard through metal components. Ensure new lumber is compatible Provide. will affect the
through wall flashing with the existing building cooling and heating load, and
component. Ensure the new flashing component is components and meets all code requirements for would require modifications to
compatible with the roof and the location. Paint the lumber allow this. The total
building components. on both sides before installation. Ensure new amount of outside air may be
materials meet any historical code reduced with systems that can
requirements necessary. clean the air as

indicated in ASHRAE 62 (i.e. Bi-
Polar lonization with needle point
technology),

and the outside air load to the
units may be reduced with an
energy recovery

wheel.
Apply high quality low modulus sealants thatare  There was no maintenance If any renovations are to occur to  Make fixtures comply with ADA
designed to adhere to the receptacle at outdoor A/C unit. the space, the rest rooms will be requirements
substrate being sealed to at all open voids and Provide. required to be
sealant replacement areas. brought up to current code
Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants standards and have a mechanical
are removed before new exhaust system.
application. The exhaust system can be used

with the energy recovery wheel.

The two main circuit breakers Additional fixtures are required
at service panels need to be to comply with International
identified as “service Plumbing Code to

disconnect 1 of 2 and 2 of 2.” type of space the building is
Correct. being used for.

An expansion joint should be installed between the Additional MC cable supports
lumber siding wall system are needed. Support per code.
and the masonry.

Retrofit components should be removed and their The two service load centers

rough-ins should be were inaccessible with items
waterproofed and flashed. A drip edge should exist stored in front of them.
to hang over the top of the They need to be accessible
component framing when reinstalled. with maintenance clearance of
3’in front of them.
Correct.

Provide fire alarm system per
NFPA for places of assembly.



Public Works Office and Shop

Remove and replace exiting metal roof system,
excluding the new addition over

the Facility Directors office. Replace with compatible,
weather resistant

galvalume Kynar coated metal panel roof system and
ensure all code and wind

requirements are met for the location. Ensure all
manufacturer specifications are

followed during the installation process. Moisture
damaged bag insulation will

more than likely need to be removed and replaced as
well.

Trim the Oak tree branches at the entrance of the public
works building so that

there is no contact between the tree and the newly
installed roof components.

Clean the clogged downspout that is preventing the
drainage of the gutter

system. It was noted that the gutter and its brackets
were bowed/bent from the

standing water load. If the gutter/straps are deformed
to the point where the

components do not successfully operate or leak, remove
and replace the

external gutter system and down spouts with new
industry standard gutters and

down spouts. Ensure the new components are
compatible with the building and

all manufacturer specifications are followed during
installation. Ensure down

spouts seam and gutter seams are sealed with an
industry standard sealant.

Install a gutter guard to prevent future downspout
clogging.

Remove and replace metal flashing components at the
public works add on to

the mechanic shop tie in. Ensure that all flashing are
positively lapped over the

metal roof system and all flashing terminations are
properly sealed with an

industry standard sealant.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the

substrate being sealed to at all open voids and
sealant replacement areas.

Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants
are removed before new

application.

Metal wall panels that are corroded at through-
wall openings and at the ground

elevation should be removed and replaced. Utilize
butyl tape and gasketed

fasteners for attachment to the
existing/neighboring panels.

The through-wall components should be removed
and a through wall flashing

installed against the underside of the wall panel
head. The flashing should drain

off both termination opening at the ends of the
90* bent flashing. The flashing

should have a drip edge that extends just beyond
the wall panel face.

Apply high quality low modulus sealants that are
designed to adhere to the

substrate being sealed to at all open siding voids
and sealant replacement areas.

Ensure any previously installed sealant remnants
are removed before new

application.

Additional raceway supports
are needed in some areas.

Exterior receptacles are not
WR. Replace with type WR.

Maintenance receptacle is
needed in the vicinity of the
outdoor A/C compressor
unit.

The disconnect switch serving
the A/C outdoor unit is rusted
very badly.

Replace.

Units that serve occupied space
will need to have the minimum
code required

outside air added. This will affect
the cooling and heating load, and
would require

modifications to allow this. The
total amount of outside air may
be reduced with

systems that can clean the air as
indicated in ASHRAE 62 (i.e. Bi-
Polar

lonization with needle point
technology).

Replace air devices with
aluminum air devices.

According to NFPA 30A for Minor
repair garages, natural ventilation
is allowed to

be used so long as two side are
open during occupied hours. This
however may

be not feasible to use at all times.
Repair the existing wall prop fan
to be used

during those times.

NFPA 30A does not cover vehicle
exhaust. A separate mobile
vehicle exhaust

system should be considered for
the shop area as well to prevent
the build up of

harmful emissions in the space.

Pipe material should last the life
of the building.

Install fixtures which comply
with ADA height requirements.

Install an eye wash station in the
shop area.



Remove the T-1-11 siding at all termination and Some of the fluorescent
through-wall abutment points. fixtures are in need of repair or
Install proper termination channels and flashings  replacement.

that will catch water and send

outboard of the exterior siding via a drip edge. If a

waterproof underlayment is

not being utilized beneath the siding, remove all

siding, properly apply a

waterproofing sheet membrane and properly

reinstall the siding with its new

termination components.

Remove and replace any fascia and soffit lumber  Lighting not working in toilets.
components damaged by the Correct

flooded gutter. Ensure new lumber is compatible

with the existing building

components and meets all code requirements for

the location. Paint the lumber

on both sides before installation. Ensure new

materials meet any historical code

requirements necessary.

Dirty fixture lens in office.
Clean all fixtures.
unit.

Fluorescent and HID lighting
are old technology and being
replaced with LED
technology. Upgrade to LED
technology.

Replace.

Provide emergency lighting
and exit signs throughout.



* $207,500 $1,157,500 $2,250,500 $2,200,500 $17,020,500 $16,470,500 $6,470,500 $45,777,500
From Fund Balance $832,058
PROJECT PROJ # FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 FY2026 TOTAL EST COST
7/1/19 - 6/30/20 7/1/20 - 6/30/21 7/1/21 - 6/30/22 7/1/22 - 6/30/23 7/1/23 - 6/30/24 7/1/24 - 6/30/25 7/1/25 - 6/3-/26
REHABILITATION OF CLARIFIERS 2021-013 $500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000
Lowered $100K - Take From Fund CLARIFIER #2
Balance
RAISE WELL HOUSES ABOVE FLOOD PLAIN 2021-014 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $900,000
WELL HOUSE #1 WELL HOUSE #2 WELL HOUSE #3
REPLACEMENT OF FAILING SANITARY MAINS - 1% OF SEWERS PER
YEAR (AS DETERMINED BY TELEVISING & EMERGENCIES) 2021-015 $275,000 $650,000 $750,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $4,675,000
Lowered $400K - Fort Screven
Area Only - Take from fund
balance
MODULAR BUILDING FOR NEW LAB 2021-016 S0 $48,000 $18,000 $18,000 $18,000 $18,000 $120,000
LEASE LEASE LEASE LEASE

Removed o udet AL S0
BUILDING MAINTENANCE - FLOORS, ROOF, DESKS, ETC. 2021-017 S0 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $50,000
ELECTRICAL UPDATE AT WWTP & MAINTENANCE 2021-018 S0 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $50,000
UPGRADE SCADA SYSTEM AND MAINTENANCE 2021-019 $15,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $40,000

Lowered $15K
REPLACE ULTRA-VIOLET BULBS FOR FINAL DISINFECTION 2021-020 S0 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $125,000
In Operating Budget
GEO-THINQ SOFTWARE (SYSTEM MAPPING), GPS SURVEY OF
STRUCTURES AND VALVES, OBTAIN INVERTS 2021-021 $45,000 $45,000 $25,000 $12,000 $12,000 $12,000 $151,000
SURVEY $33K SURVEY $33K SURVEY $13K
SOFTWARE LICENSING $12K SOFTWARE LICENSING $12K SOFTWARE LICENSING $12K SOFTWARE LICENSING 5121¢ SOFTWARE LICENSING 512K SOFTWARE LICENSING 512K

BAR SCREEN, COMINATOR, AND CHOPPER BLADE IN HEADWORKS
BUILDING 2021 -022 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $300,000

Removed from Budget
REPLACE SANITARY FORCEMAINS 2021-023 $75,000 $125,000 $175,000 $500,000 $875,000

F.M. #10 F.M. #5 F.M. #2 F.M. #1
REPLACE/REPAIR LIFT STATIONS 2021-024 $0 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $1,250,000
VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT N/A S0 $22,500 $15,000 $60,000 $60,000 $60,000 $217,500
EQUIPMENT $15K EQUIPMENT $15K EQUIPMENT $15K EQUIPMENT $15K EQUIPMENT $15K
MULE $7.5K TRUCK $45K TRUCK $45K TRUCK $45K
PORTABLE PUMP FOR WWTP 2022 - 001 $50,000 $50,000
WATER TOWER CONTRACTS (MAINTENANCE & PAINTING) 2020 - 007 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000 $290,000 $40,000 $40,000 $530,000
PAINT TOWER $250K
MAINTENANCE $40K

WWTP - REUSE WATER SYSTEM 2022 - 002 $100,000 $100,000
NEW VAC CON TRUCK 2023- 003 $400,000 $400,000
15% MATCH FOR LIFT STATION GENERATORS AND PUMPS 2020 - 008 $65,000 $64,000 $129,000
15% MATCH FOR LIFT STORM SHUTTERS 2020 - 002 $2,500 $2,500 $5,000
ODOR CONTROL FOR WWTP & LIFT STATIONS 2021 - 025 $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $75,000
NEW CONVEYOR FOR SLUDGE PRESS 2023 - 001 $30,000 $30,000
NEW 480 VOLT GENERATOR FOR WWTP 2023 - 002 $100,000 $100,000
MISCELLANEOUS WATER REPAIRS (MAINTENANCE & BREAKS) 2020-019 $100,000 $103,500 $150,000 $150,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $803,500

Took Bar Screen Money
CONSTRUCT NEW DEEP WATER WELL 2024 - 001 $15,000,000 $15,000,000 $5,000,000 $35,000,000




COST ESTIMATE TO CONVERT TO PUBLIC ROAD

UNIT COSTS:
ASPHALT PAVEMENT
TACK COAT

3/4" C.AB.C.

FINE GRADING

IZLAR AVENUE PAVING

IZLAR SANITARY SEWER

IZLAR STORM SEWER

IZLAR WATER MAIN

$125.00 PER TON

$3.50 PER GAL

$15.00 PER TON

$10.00 PERS.Y.
LENGTH (FT) 665
WIDE (FT) 20
THICKNESS (IN) 5
TOTALS.Y. 1477.777778
BASE COURSE (FT) 0.5
LENGTH 660
LENTH 350
SIZE (IN) 12
MANHOLES 2
INLETS 4

CONVERSION FACT(
110#/S.Y./IN

0.065 GAL/S.Y.

2 TONS/C.Y.



IRS

PAVEMENT
TACK COAT
3/4 CABC

FINE GRADING

UNIT TOTALS
406.39 TONS
96.06 GALLONS
492.59 TONS
1,477.78 SY

$200 PERLIN FT

$100 PERLIN FT

$1,500 EACH
$1,500 EACH

ESTIMATED COST

$50,799
$336
$7,389
$14,778
$73,301 SUB TOTAL
$7,330 10% CONTINGENCY
$80,632 ESTIMATED TOTAL

$132,000

$132,000 SUBTOTAL
$13,200 10% CONTINGENCY

$145,200 ESTIMATED TOTAL

$35,000

$3,000

$6,000
$44,000 SUBTOTAL

$4,400 10% CONTINGENCY
$48,400 ESTIMATED TOTAL

$0 ALREADY COMPLE1



‘ED



COST ESTIMATE TO CONVERT TO PUBLIC ROAD

UNIT COSTS:
ASPHALT PAVEMENT
TACK COAT

3/4" C.AB.C.

FINE GRADING

TS CHU TERRACE PAVING

TS CHU TERRACE SANITARY SEWER

TS CHU TERRACE STORM SEWER

TS CHU TERRACE WATER MAIN

$125.00 PER TON
$3.50 PER GAL
$15.00 PERTON
$10.00 PERS.Y.

LENGTH (FT) 660
WIDE (FT) 20
THICKNESS (IN) 5
TOTALS.Y. 1467
BASE COURSE (FT) 0.5
LENGTH 625
LENTH 100 (12") & 350 (24")
SIZE (IN) 12 & 24
MANHOLES 1
INLETS 2
LENGTH 660
SIZE (IN) 6
SERVICES 15

CONVERSION FACTORS
110#/S.Y./IN

0.065 GAL/S.Y.

2 TONS/C.Y.

PAVEMENT
TACK COAT
3/4 CABC
FINE GRADING

UNIT TOTALS
403

95

489

1467

$200

$100
$150
$1,500
$1,500

$110

$1,500



HYDRANTS 2 $2,500
VALVES 6 $3,000



TONS
GALLONS
TONS

SY

PER LIN FT

PER LIN FT (12)
PER LIN FT (24)
EACH
EACH

PER LIN FT

EACH

ESTIMATED COST
$50,417
$334
$7,333
$14,667
$72,750 SUB TOTAL
$7,275 10% CONTINGENCY
$80,025 ESTIMATED TOTAL

$125,000

$125,000 SUBTOTAL
$12,500 10% CONTINGENCY

$137,500 ESTIMATED TOTAL

$10,000
SO ALREADY INSTALLED
$1,500
$3,000
$14,500 SUBTOTAL
$1,450 10% CONTINGENCY
$15,950 ESTIMATED TOTAL

$72,600

$22,500



EACH
EACH

$5,000
$18,000
$45,500 SUBTOTAL

$4,550 10% CONTINGENCY
$50,050 ESTIMATED TOTAL



	Top
	1.	Approve Draft Minutes from 1-14-21
	January 14, 2021 Draft Minutes

	2.	CIP
	Copy of Building Assessment Spreadsheet2 - Color PDF
	Pete's Copy of CIP 2020-25

	3.	Make TS Chu a Public Street
	Izlar Cost Estimate to make it public
	TS Chu Cost Estimate to make it public

	4.	Old Marine Science Center
	5.	Southend Bathrooms
	6.	Master Water Meters for Condos
	7.	Current Projects Update
	Bottom

